




 

Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustment  February 7, 2018 Page 1 of 2  

Zoning Board of Adjustment Agenda 

Bastrop City Hall City Council Chambers 

1311 Chestnut Street 

Bastrop, TX 78602 

(512) 332-8840 

 

Meeting Minutes for the Zoning Board of Adjustments  

February 7, 2018 at 6:00 P.M. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Dan Hays-Clark called to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Dan Hays-Clark    PRESENT  
Blas Coy       PRESENT 
Bob Rogers         PRESENT 
Scott Bryant  PRESENT     
Jimmy Crouch     PRESENT 
 
2. CITIZEN COMMENTS  
 
No citizen comments. 
 
 
3. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 
A. Consider action to approve the minutes from the December 6, 2017 meeting. 
 

Motion to approve minutes by Blas Coy, seconded by Jimmy Crouch. Motion approved 5-0. 
 

B. Election of officers for the Zoning Board of Adjustments. 
 

Motion made by Blas Coy to nominate Dan Has-Clark to remain Chair, seconded by Bob Rogers. 
Motion approved 5-0. 
 
Motion made by Dan Hays-Clark to nominate Blas Coy to remain Co-Chair, seconded by Bob 
Rogers. Motion approved 5-0. 
 

C. Consider action to approve the Zoning Board of Adjustment calendar for 2018. 
 
Motion made by Dan Hays-Clark to approve the calendar with the change for the July 4th meeting 
to be moved to Wednesday July 11, 2018, seconded by Scott Bryant. Motion approved 5-0. 



 

Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustment  February 7, 2018 Page 2 of 2  

 
D. Public Hearing and consider action on variances to Chapter 14, Zoning Ordinance, 

Exhibit B – Downtown Bastrop Form-Based Code, Section 7.3 Façade Composition, 
Section 7.6 Exterior Building Materials, Section 8.0 Streetscape and Landscape 
Standards to allow the continued use of a temporary modular building for 0.194 acres 
of Building Block 8 West of Water Street, located at 1006 Alley A, in the city limits of 
Bastrop, Texas. 

Applicant requested hearing to be rescheduled, until five Zoning Board of Adjustment members 
were available to vote on their request. Dan Hays-Clark recused himself due to a conflict of 
interest, bringing the voting members to only four. 
 
Bob Rogers made a motion for a continuance of the hearing for a future meeting, seconded by 
Scott Bryant. Motion approved 4-0. 
 
4. ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 6:15 p.m. the agenda items came to an end and Dan Hays-Clark adjourned the meeting. 

 

____________________________ 

Dan Hays-Clark, Chair 



Page 1 of 3 
 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  March 7, 2018      ITEM: 3B  
   
TITLE:  
Public Hearing and consider action to approve an extension of the use of a non-conforming 
structure (temporary building), with conditions, pursuant to Chapter 14, Zoning Ordinance, 
Section 9.7 – Nonconforming Uses and Structures, for 0.194 acres of Building Block 8 West of 
Water Street, located at 1006 Alley A, in the city limits of Bastrop, Texas. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address:  1006 Alley A (Attachment 1) 
Total Acreage:  0.194 acres 
Legal Description: Building Block 8, west of Water Street, 0.194 acres 
 
Property Owner: Calvary Episcopal Church 
Applicant Contact: Shelby Hopkins 
 
Existing Use:  Private school 
Existing Zoning: Form-Based Code – Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) Character Zone 
Future Land Use: Downtown Bastrop 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
Calvary Episcopal Church has private school located at 603 Spring Street and other properties 
along Alley A.  The private school was created in 2008 and started as a Pre-Kindergarten through 
sixth grade.  The school has recently expanded to offer seventh and eighth grade classes as well 
continued to expand enrollment. 
 
Temporary buildings are not allowed to be used on a permanent basis.  A modular building may 
be considered if it can meet all of the Building Code and Site Development Plan requirements.  
On April 3, 2013, a variance was granted to allow a temporary building that did not meet the Site 
Development Plan requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Attachment 3).  A Site Development 
Plan was approved on July 17, 2013 that shows the location of the building but does not address 
all of the required site plan elements. 
  



Page 2 of 3 

Existing Temporary Building 

One of the conditions of the 2013 approval was the building be removed 60 days after the end of 
the school year in May of 2018, and future development is to come into compliance with site 
requirements.  Currently, the building is used for private school classrooms during the week and 
for Sunday school classes on the weekends. 

The applicant is requesting an extension of the temporary building usage until the end of the 2023-
2024 school year while they explore options for a new campus site.  The applicant states that 
they do not intend to use this site as the permanent school location.  The justification for the need 
for a temporary building is that they need time for a capital campaign to raise funds for the new 
campus.  The applicant requests exemptions to the site development requirements are needed 
because installation of a permanent foundation, required building façade, exterior materials, and 
landscaping is not effective or practical (Attachment 2). 

The building was legally placed at the time of construction, but as of July 2018 will be considered 
a non-conforming structure after the expiration of the variance.   

Staff is recommending no more than a two-year continuation of the use of the nonconforming 
structure, which will then be disconnected and removed July 31, 2020.  Additionally, staff 
recommends the installation of an evergreen vegetative screen at least six feet in height, along 
length of the temporary building, to soften the appearance of the site from the roadway 
and adjacent structures.  The following plants (semi-mature at planting) would provide 
appropriate screening: 

 Wax Myrtle: grows to 5-15 feet tall; seasonal fruit on females; non-ornamental flowers;
soil-stabilizing.  Spacing – every 5 feet.

 Sandankwa Viburnum: grows 6-8 feet tall; flowers; cold and heat hardy for Bastrop area.
Spacing – every 2 feet.

 Texas Sage – Silverado: very tough native plant; grows to 4-8 feet; usually gray/silver in
color.  Spacing – every 3 feet.

 Yaupon/Yaupon Holly: grow to 10-20 feet; good leaf coverage; often used as hedge and
screening; non-ornamental flowers; females produce fruit – buy male plants; also slow-
growing, so need to purchase larger plants to accomplish screening.  Do not buy dwarf
varieties.  Spacing – every 3 feet.

 Crimson Bottlebrush: non-native, but not incredibly invasive; grows to 6-10 feet; fast
growing; flowers with visual interest; can die in severe cold snaps.  Spacing – every 5
feet.



Page 3 of 3 
 

 Primrose Jasmine: grows to 4-7 feet; likes to drape, and needs width to grow up and 
arch out; flowers. Spacing – every 6 feet. 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
Notifications were sent to 15 adjacent property owners.  At the time of this report, no responses 
were received. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The Zoning Board of Adjustment may authorize the continuation of a nonconforming structure, 
per Section 9.3 – Authority of the Board.  To approve the extension of the use of the temporary 
building, the following findings shall be provided. 

1. Will not be detrimental to the health, safety and welfare, or injurious to other property 
owners in the area. 
 
The building does not provide an immediate detriment to other property; however, the 
Downtown Mixed-Use character zone is intended to encourage compatible mixed-use 
redevelopment.  As other property continues to develop and redevelop, the structure’s 
nonconformity will hinder the cohesive downtown appearance.  A two-year time limit of 
the continued use will serve to bring this site into conformance. 
 

2. Will not have the effect of preventing orderly development. 
 
This structure is not currently preventing the orderly development of other property.  A 
time limit on the continuance will ensure that the site will further the Downtown Mixed-
Use character zone in the near future. 
 

3. Is harmonious with the surrounding area. 
 
The installation of an evergreen vegetative screening along the south side of the 
structure will provide a more appealing view from Chestnut Street, which is a primary 
entrance into downtown Bastrop from SH 71. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Public Hearing and consider action to approve an extension of the use of a non-conforming 
structure (temporary building), with conditions, pursuant to Chapter 14, Zoning Ordinance, 
Section 9.7 – Nonconforming Uses and Structures, for 0.194 acres of Building Block 8 West of 
Water Street, located at 1006 Alley A, in the city limits of Bastrop, Texas. 
 

1. A vegetative screening of six feet will be provided (from the selection above or an 
approved alternative) along the south side of the structure. 
 

2. The structure will be removed by July 31, 2020. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  Location Map 
Attachment 2:  Letter from Applicant 
Attachment 3:  April 3, 2013 Variance 



ALLEY A

SPRING

CH
UR

CH

LOOP 150 WEST CHESTNUT

1012 ALLEY A

1011 ALLEY A
1011 ALLEY A1011 ALLEY A

1011 ALLEY A1010 ALLEY A

1006 ALLEY A

600 SPRING ST

603 SPRING ST

R33785

R34033

R33792

R47723

R47581

R33757

R33743

R33652

R119880

R33715

R33722R33729

R33673

R33764

R33778

R33750

R33827

R47727

Location Map
Extension of Use of a Non-Conforming Structure

Calvary Episcopal School
Building Block 8 West of Water St, 0.194 acres ³Date: 1/31/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   1 inch = 50 feet

FARM

MAIN

PECAN

WATER

SPRING

PINE

CHURCH

ALLEY A
ALLEY B

WILSON

¬«150



jbills
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2














	Zoning - Signed Minutes March 7 2018 Meeting
	March 7 2018 ZBA Packet



